
THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE HEARING 

IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 BY CONTACTING 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT, 503-338-5183. 

AGENDA 

ASTORIA PLANNING COMMISSION 

November 28, 2017 

6:30 p.m.  

2nd Floor Council Chambers 

1095 Duane Street ● Astoria OR  97103 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. MINUTES

a. October 24, 2017 Minutes
b. Pending receipt of September 6, 2017 Minutes

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

5. Conditional Use CU17-13 by Chester Trabucco to construct a 7,164.5 square foot
Professional Office/Service Establishment at 632 West Marine in the S2-A Tourist-oriented
Shorelands zone.

6. Conditional Use CU17-14 by Stephan Eiter, WWHJ Holdings, LLC to locate light
manufacturing in approximately 1,000 square feet of an existing vacant building at 1010
Duane St in the C-4, Central Commercial zone.

7. Sign Variance V17-02 by Stephan Eiter, WWHJ Holdings from a maximum of 15 square foot
projecting sign to install a 36 square foot sign on the sw corner of the building, and from the
maximum of 64’ allowed at the site to 74.5’ for wall signage at 1010 Duane St in the C-4,
Central Commercial zone.

8. REPORT OF OFFICERS

9. STAFF UPDATES

10. MISC

a. Welcome Joan Herman to the Astoria Planning Commission
b. Review APC meeting schedule changes for December and January

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS – NON AGENDA ITEMS

12. ADJOURNMENT



  

Astoria Planning Commission  
Minutes 10-24-2017 

Page 1 of 3   

ASTORIA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING    
Astoria City Hall 
October 24, 2017 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Vice President Easom called the meeting to order at 7:09 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:  
 
Commissioners Present: Vice President Kent Easom, Jennifer Cameron-Lattek, Sean Fitzpatrick, Daryl 

Moore, Jan Mitchell and Brookley Henri. 
 
Commissioners Excused:  President David Pearson 
 
Staff Present:  Planner Nancy Ferber and contractor Hannah Dankbar. The meeting is 

recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: 

 
In accordance with Sections 1.110 and 1.115 of the Astoria Development Code, the APC needs to elect 
officers. The officers were President David Pearson, Vice President Kent Easom, and Secretary Anna 
Stamper. 

 
Commissioner Moore moved that the Astoria Planning Commission elect Kent Easom as President and Sean 
Fitzpatrick as Vice President for the remainder of 2017; seconded by Commissioner Mitchell. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
President Easom asked for approval of the minutes of the August 22, 2017 meeting. Vice-President Fitzpatrick 
moved that the Astoria Planning Commission approve the minutes as presented; seconded by Commissioner 
Mitchell. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The minutes of the September 6, 2017 and September 26, 2017 meetings were not yet available. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
President Easom explained the procedures governing the conduct of public hearings to the audience and 
advised that handouts of the substantive review criteria were available from Staff. 
 
ITEM 5(a): 
 
CU17-02 & ADU17-04 Conditional Use CU17-02 and Accessory Dwelling Unit ADU17-04 by Michael Angiletta 

to locate an ADU in an existing single-family dwelling at 1320 Madison Avenue in the R-
1, Low Density Residential zone. 

 
President Easom asked if anyone objected to the jurisdiction of the Planning Commission to hear this matter at 
this time. There were no objections. He asked if any member of the Planning Commission had any conflicts of 
interest or ex parte contacts to declare.  
 
Vice-President Fitzpatrick declared that he was friends with Mr. Angiletta, but believed he could be impartial. Mr. 
Angiletta has been very respectful of the fact that he could not discuss the application. 
 
Commissioner Cameron-Lattek declared that she knew Mr. Angiletta, but she had not spoken with him about 
this matter. She did not believe this would preclude her from being impartial. 
 



  

Astoria Planning Commission  
Minutes 10-24-2017 

Page 2 of 3   

President Easom declared he knew Mr. Angiletta, but did not believe that would impact his decision. He had 
seen the property on more than one occasion although not for the purposes of this hearing. 
 
President Easom asked Staff to present the Staff report. 
 
Hannah Dankbar reviewed the written Staff report. No correspondence had been received and Staff 
recommended approval of the request with the conditions listed in the Staff report. 
 
President Easom opened the public hearing and called for a presentation by the Applicant. 
 
Michael Angiletta, 1320 Madison Avenue, Astoria, stated most people could acknowledge that Astoria has a 
housing challenge. He found the application process to be interesting. He filled out three applications and paid 
$750 for the privilege of doing this legally. The house he is currently living had been illegally rented out for 
years. He suggested Astoria find a way to create less friction for people who want to play by the rules so that 
more people will play by the rules. Staff has been very helpful and supportive. However, the amount of time and 
money in order to supply an extra housing unit is astounding. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell asked Mr. Angiletta to explain what he meant by friction. 
 
Mr. Angiletta said there were three forms that were redundant. He answered the same questions on two 
separate forms, one for the conditional use permit, and one for the accessory dwelling unit. Three separate fees 
added up to about $750. He believed the fees would be prohibitive for many people. Some might be creating a 
rental unit because they need additional financial support. Time was the other frictional component. This was a 
three-month process. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell stated she came from a place where fees were much higher for many things. She 
believed rental units would be rented for the same amount and more. It would take Staff time to create a new 
form. It would be better for more people to do these projects legally. Long-term rentals would also be better 
because Astoria needs them. A three-month process is not very long in other cities. She asked if Mr. Angiletta’s 
neighbors were happy. 
 
Mr. Angiletta said he understood that the R-1 zone required some special circumstances. He had spoken with 
all of his neighbors and one neighbor was present. 
 
Planner Ferber stated she was always happy to receive feedback from customers and streamline processes. 
Much of the process has been mandated by City Council. When housing policies were discussed, ADUs were 
proposed to require a conditional use permit in all zones. The compromise was to require the permit only in R-1 
zones. She understood the applicant’s perspective and agreed the process should be easy. She recommended 
Mr. Angiletta reach out to his Councilor about these issues. 
 
President Easom asked if Staff could combine the ADU and conditional use application.  
 
Planner Ferber explained that the conditional use application needed to be broad because Staff receives 
requests for permits in all zones and for very different uses. She would look into it, but believed the process was 
simplified as it could be at this time. 
 
President Easom called for any testimony in favor of, impartial to, or opposed to the application. Hearing none, 
he called for closing comments of Staff. There were none. He closed the public hearing and called for 
Commission discussion and deliberation. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved that the Astoria Planning Commission adopt the Findings and Conclusions 
contained in the Staff report and approve Conditional Use CU17-02 and Accessory Dwelling Unit ADU17-04 by 
Michael Angiletta; seconded by Commissioner Moore. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
President Easom read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 
 



Astoria Planning Commission  
Minutes 10-24-2017 

Page 3 of 3   

REPORTS OF OFFICERS:  

President Easom thanked David Pearson for his years of service to the Planning Commission and Historic 
Landmarks Commission. 

STAFF UPDATES: 

Planner Ferber recommended that the December meeting be rescheduled. She updated the Commission on the 
following: 
 Efforts to hire a new Community Development Director
 American Planner Association Conference in Portland
 New Commissioner Training

MISCELLANEOUS: 

ITEM 8(a): Thank you and farewell to Dave Pearson for his service as Chairman of the Astoria Planning 
Commission. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – NON AGENDA ITEMS: 
There were none. 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:30 pm.  

APPROVED: 

_____________________________ 
City Planner 

_____________________________ 
Crest Planner 





T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 2 

of 10 

II. BACKGROUND

A. Subject Property 
The subject property is located on the north side of Marine Drive between 6th and 
7th street. The large vacant parking lot is currently divided as five tax lots under 
four different ownerships. Included with the application is a signed letter of co-
application by Cory Bechtolt, the agent/owner of the south portion of the lot where 
part of the building, and all of the parking for the proposed development is 
proposed.   

Originally, the applicant proposed two buildings, the current CUP request is for 
just one building noted on the site plan dated 11/15/17. The commercial bank is 
no longer part of this proposal. The proposed development will require review by 
the Historic Landmarks Commission as new construction adjacent to a historic 
structure. The Fisher Brothers building across 7th street triggers the review.  

Currently, parking for the 6th street river park was located on this lot per an 
agreement with the City in June 1998, to reduce a Local Improvement District 
obligation. In trade for the reduction, No. 10 6th street provided 8 marked public 
parking spaces in perpetuity on the lot at the foot of 6th street. Prior to construction, 
these 8 spaces will need to be identified and marked per the 1998 agreement.  

This site is within the area for the Waterfront Bridges Replacement Project, the 
applicant is working with Public Works staff obtain easements and deeds for the 
site. An 
easement 
and deed is 
required for 
each side of 
the 6th street 
bridge. A 
dedication of 
23 square 
feet is 
needed to 
locate the 
bridge end 
structural 
support and 
reconstruct 
an existing 
driveway 
entrance. 
Additional 
information and an exhibit is included in the supplementary information.  



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 3 

of 10 

B. Adjacent Neighborhood 
The neighborhood is developed with a variety of uses, including a brewery, tourist-
oriented commercial retail, restaurants, offices and a gas station.  

The site is north of the C-3 zone which allows professional services as an outright 
use. The adjacent properties are zoned S-2A shown in purple. This Tourist 
Oriented Shoreland Zone is intended to provide for mixed-use tourist oriented 
developments, which are compatible with pedestrian orientation.  

III. PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT

A public notice was mailed to all property owners within 200 feet pursuant to 
Section 9.020 on November 3, 2017. A notice of public hearing was published in 
the Daily Astorian on November 20, 2017. An onsite notice was furnished and is 
located on the site. Comments received will be made available at the Planning 
Commission meeting. 

IV. APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA AND FINDINGS OF FACT

A. Section 2.710(7) concerning Conditional Uses permitted in the S-2A Zone lists 
“Professional and business offices,” the Fresenius Kidney Care center services 
proposed fall under this category as defined by the following in Article 1.400:  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE ESTABLISHMENTS:  Businesses primarily engaged 
in providing services such as the following: medical and other health services; 
legal services; engineering and architectural services; accounting, auditing, and 
bookkeeping services; real estate services; and financial services. 

Finding: The applicant proposes an expansion and relocation of the existing 
Fresenius Kidney Care center located near Columbia Memorial Hospital, where 
they have outgrown their capacity. The proposed use at the site would develop 
7,200 gross square feet and use the remaining portion of the lot for loading and 
parking. The criteria is met.        

B. Section 2.185(1) states that “All uses will comply with applicable access, parking, 
and loading standards in Article 7”.  

Section 7.100 concerning Minimum Parking Space Requirements identifies 
parking spaces for professional offices as one space per 500 square feet.  

Finding: The proposed use will be in new commercial structure. Areas east of 7th 
street in the S-2A zone are not required to provide off-street parking and loading. 
However, the location is just a block west of the exemption; 7,200 square feet 



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 4 

of 10 
 

requires 1 space per 500 square feet for a total of 14.4 spaces, which 
development code requires to round up to 15. An additional loading zone of 12’ by 
55’ with a height of 14’ is required for loading for square footage 5,000-59,999 per 
article 7.160. 

 
  The applicant has addressed the necessary loading zone, and has outlined 29 

parking spaces including two ADA spaces. However the current parking plan as 
delineated on the site plan below, does not meet code requirement Code 3.120( 
#8). Parking areas with 20 spaces or more shall have a minimum of one 
landscaping divider per ten (10) parking spaces.  Each ten (10) parking spaces 
shall be bordered by a landscaped 
area.  Such area shall consist of a 
curbed planter of at least three (3) 
feet by 16 feet, or at least 48 
square feet.  Each planter shall 
contain at least one (1) tree, along 
with hedge or shrub material. 

 
  The applicant shall submit an 

updated parking plan with the 
required landscaping divider, and 
reconfigure the spaces if 
necessary to maintain the 
minimum required space sizes.  

 

Subject site 



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 5 

of 10 
 

  In addition to article 3.120, the applicant shall comply with article 7.050 which 
requires the following for joint use parking:  

 
7.050.   OWNERSHIP OF PARKING AND LOADING AREAS. 
 
A. Except as provided for joint use parking in Section 7.070, the land to be provided for 

off-street parking and loading areas, including driveways, aisles, and maneuvering 
areas shall be: 

  1. Owned by the owner of the property served by the parking; or  
  2. In commercial and industrial zones, the parking may be provided by a 

permanent and irrevocable easement appurtenant to the property served by the 
parking; or 

  3. Be leased for a minimum term of five (5) years, provided that upon expiration or 
termination of the lease, the parking requirements of this ordinance shall 
otherwise be fully met within 90 days or the use discontinued until such 
requirements are met 

 
  Currently, the land owned on the south portion of the “L” shaped development is 

in separate ownership. The parking on that portion of the property may be 
granted by an irrevocable easement. Future development on the south portion 
of the lot would be restricted based on the availability of parking on the site.  
The applicant shall submit proof of single ownership of the lots, or an 
irrevocable easement for use of the property for parking.     

    
 C. Section 2.445(8) requires that signs will comply with requirements in Article 8.  
 
  Finding: No new signs are proposed as part of this request. Any future sign 

installations shall comply with the requirements of Article 8. The applicant shall 
submit a sign permit, and building permit if required, for any new signage at the 
site prior to installation. 

 
 D.  Section 2.715(1) All uses will satisfy applicable Columbia River Estuary 

Shoreland and Aquatic Area Use and Activity Standards in Article 4.  Where a 
proposal involves several uses the standards applicable to each use shall be 
satisfied. 

 
  Section 2.715(2) Outdoor storage areas will be enclosed by appropriate 

vegetation, fencing, or walls.  
 
  Section 2.715(6) states that “Commercial and recreational facilities having a 

tourist orientation shall be designed to take maximum advantage of river views.” 
 
  Finding:  
   

(1) The proposal may require review by CREST to comply with article 4.180 which 
requires proposed Shoreland area development shall be evaluated prior to 



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 6 

of 10 
 

construction to assure that new hazards are not created or existing hazards are 
not worsened on adjacent property.   

   
  (2) The applicant has not submitted a detailed plan for the storage area consisting 

of a generator and trash enclosure. These areas will both need to be enclosed by 
appropriate fencing or landscaping. Plans shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Department for review and may possibly require review by the 
Historic Landmarks Commission. The location shall comply with vision clearance 
requirements for the corner location. 

 
    (6) The proposed use as professional offices is not tourist-oriented and does not 

require specific siting for river views on the site. The Planning Commission may 
require landscaping, lighting, street future of other amenities as part of a new use 
per 2.170 (8e).  

 
E. Section 11.020(B.)(1) states that “the Planning Commission shall base their 

decision on whether the use complies with the applicable policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan.”  

 
 CP.055. Downtown Policies Area Policies, states the following guiding policies: 
 
 
 1. CP.200.1, Economic Development Goal 1 and Goal 1 Policy 5, states 

that “The City of Astoria will strengthen, improve, and diversify the area's 
economy to increase local employment opportunities. 5. Provide a 
supportive environment for new business.”  
 

   Finding: The applicant is proposing new development for relocation of a 
current kidney dialysis center. The new center will employ approximately 
10 staffers, and provide 17 stations for in-center treatment. The applicant 
states the facility has outgrown its facility. The addition of a professional 
service establishment would diversity this area town, and provide 
employment opportunities. 

 
   Finding: The request is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 F. Section 11.030(A) requires that “before a conditional use is approved, findings will 

be made that the use will comply with the following standards:” 
 
  1. Section 11.030(A)(1) requires that “the use is appropriate at the proposed 

location. Several factors which should be considered in determining 
whether or not the use is appropriate include: accessibility for users (such 
as customers and employees); availability of similar existing uses; 
availability of other appropriately zoned sites; and the desirability of other 
suitably zoned sites for the use.” 

 



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 7 

of 10 

Finding: The proposed site is appropriate for a new building. The site is flat, 
and easily developed compared to other areas posing geological issues. 
An 18 wheel delivery truck was noted as a requirement for the operation of 
the site, the parking lot and existing driveway cuts allow for access to the 
site. However Public Works noted maneuvering a truck off-site may not 
occur over the Riverwalk or trolley line. Earlier iterations of the site plan 
have since been amended to show maneuvering on site. 

Other similar sites may be available, the applicant notes “exhaustive 
search for alternative sites to accommodate unique needs of the facility,” 
but did not provide information about other locations researched. 
As noted in an email to the applicant November 13, 2017, requesting 
additional information to address this criteria, the applicant shall submit 
informational outlining why is this location the only one that works for the 
proposed use. 

The proposed single story building will require Historic Landmarks Review 
for its design and massing. However additional uses which could be 
utilized at the site will not come under review. This site also allows for 
multiple uses such as multi-family housing (as a conditional use), tourist 
oriented sales, or a recreation establishment, all of which would provide an 
engaging active building or smaller cluster of buildings which lack 
availability in other locations. 

2. Section 11.030(A)(2) requires that “an adequate site layout will be
used for transportation activities. Consideration should be given to the 
suitability of any access points, on-site drives, parking, loading and 
unloading areas, refuse collection and disposal points, sidewalks, bike 
paths, or other transportation facilities. Suitability, in part, should be 
determined by the potential impact of these facilities on safety, traffic flow 
and control, and emergency vehicle movements.” 

Section 7.105 -Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for new 
development, change of use, and major renovation, at a minimum, based 
on the standards in Table 7.105.  Major renovation is defined as 
construction valued at 25% or more of the assessed value of the existing 
structure.   

Where an application is subject to Conditional Use Permit approval or 
the applicant has requested a reduction to an automotive parking 
standard, pursuant to Section 7.062, the Community Development 
Director or Planning Commission, as applicable, may require bicycle 
parking spaces in addition to those in Table 7.105.  

Per table 7.105- Commercial uses require 1 bike space per primary use, 
or 1 per 10 vehicle spaces.  



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 8 

of 10 
 

 Finding: The site is adequately paved and accessible from 6th and 7th 
streets. It is fully serviced by a sidewalk on both sides. The total number 
of automobile parking spaces have been met. However as noted above, 
additional buffering and landscaping is required at the site to meet 
parking requirements in Articles 3 and 7.  

 
 The conditional use permit triggers the requirement for additional bike 

parking, because it is new development. The applicant has shown bike 
parking near the eastern ADA parking spot. If the enclosure is not 
attached to the building, it may require review by the Historic Landmarks 
Commission depending on its size. Additional details are required to 
review the proposed bike parking. At a minimum, three bike spaces are 
required. Two of them must be long-term spots- located in either a 
lockable enclosure, secure form on-site or another form of sheltered 
secure parking. Article 7.105 B for design and location of bike parking 
has not been addressed with the site plan submitted. The applicant shall 
submit additional details to the Community Development Department for 
review of bike parking prior to submitting for building permits.  

 
  3. Section 11.030(A)(3) requires that the use will not overburden water and 

sewer facilities, storm drainage, fire and police protection, or other utilities. 
 
  Finding: The applicant has discussed water, sewer and storm water 

options for the site with Public Works. A grading and erosion control permit 
will be required as well as addressing a water line upgrade to provide a fire 
hydrant on the southwest corner of the site. A sanitary sewer extension on 
6th street and connection to storm drainage or plans for bioswales shall be 
submitted to Public Works prior to obtaining building permits. The proposed 
use will not overburden public safety protection.  

 
  4. Section 11.030(A)(4) requires that “the topography, soils and other physical 

characteristics of the site are adequate for the use. Where determined by 
the City Engineer, an engineering or geologic study by a qualified individual 
may be required prior to construction. 

 
  Finding:  Prior to obtaining building permits, documentation including the 

NFA from DEQ should be provided as part of the proposed development to 
give the Building Division and Public Works department a scope of 
restrictions and limitations associated with site development, in any. 
Additional geological investigation may be required by Public Works to 
obtain a grading erosion control permit.  

 
  5. Section 11.030(A)(5) requires that “the use contain an appropriate amount of 

landscaping, buffers, setbacks, berms or other separation from adjacent uses.” 
   



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 9 

of 10 

Finding: With new construction, Article 3.105 requires landscaping come 
into compliance; including 3.105 (9) requiring parking areas separated from 
exterior walls of a structure by a strip of landscaping. However, there are 
no additional landscaping requirements for the S-2A zone. Landscaping, 
lighting, street furniture, or above ground planters at the entryway may be 
required by the Planning Commission. The applicant shall submit an 
updated landscaping plan showing a buffer between every 20 parking 
spaces, and landscaping between the building and parking.  

V. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends approval of the request based on the findings of fact above with the 
following conditions: 

1. Significant changes or modifications to the proposed plans as described in this Staff
Report shall be reviewed by the Astoria Planning Commission.

2. The applicant shall submit a withdrawal of previous development permits associated
with the site, utilizing the area for parking.

3. Prior to issuing any building permits, the applicant shall obtain Historic Landmarks
Commission review for new construction adjacent to a historic structure.

4. The applicant shall submit detailed plans relocating the generator and trash enclosure
off of Marine Drive. The location shall comply with vision clearance requirements for
the corner location. The generator and trash enclosure require appropriate fencing or
landscaping. Plans shall be submitted to the Community Development Department for
review and may possibly require review by the Historic Landmarks Commission.

5. Prior to construction, 8 spaces previously dedicated for public parking in perpetuity at
the site shall be identified and marked per the 1998 agreement.

6. The applicant shall submit an updated parking plan with the required landscaping
divider, and reconfigure the spaces if necessary to maintain the minimum required
space sizes.

7. The applicant shall submit proof of single ownership of the lots, or an irrevocable
easement for use of the property.

8. The applicant shall submit a sign and building permit if required for any new signage at
the site prior to installation.



T:\General CommDev\APC\Permits\Conditional Use\2017\CU17-13 632 Marine Drive Kidney Center Chester 
Trabucco\CU17-13 632 W Marine Drive Chester Trabucco Professional Services_mm_FINAL.docx       Page 10 

of 10 

9. The applicant shall submit their proposed developed for Shoreland Hazard review by
CREST to comply with article 4.180 which requires proposed Shoreland area
development shall be evaluated prior to construction to assure that new hazards are not
created or existing hazards are not worsened on adjacent property.

10. As noted in an email to the applicant November 13, 2017 requesting additional
information to address this criteria, the applicant shall submit informational outlining
why is this location the only one that works for the proposed us.

11. A grading and erosion control permit will be required as well as addressing a water line
upgrade to provide a fire hydrant on the southwest corner of the site. A sanitary sewer
extension on 6th street and connection to storm drainage or plans for bioswales shall
be submitted to Public Works prior to obtaining building permits.

12. The applicant shall submit an updated landscaping plan showing a buffer between every
20 parking spaces, and landscaping between the building and parking.

13. The applicant shall submit additional details to the Community Development
Department for review of bike parking prior to submitting for building permits.

The applicant should be aware of the following requirements: The applicant shall obtain all 
necessary City and building permits prior to the start of operation. 

Staff recommends approval of the request with the conditions noted, based on the findings of 
fact above. 






























































































































































	Agenda
	Minutes
	CU 17-13 Staff Report
	Supplemental Documents

	CU 17-14 Staff Report
	Supplemental Documents

	V17-02 Staff Report
	Supplemental Documents




